

~~black ink and~~ signed. Except as provided in division (G) of 57203  
section 3705.09, section 3705.12, 3705.121, 3705.122, or 3705.124, 57204  
division (D) of section 3705.15, or section 3705.16 of the Revised 57205  
Code, ~~a signature required on~~ a birth, fetal death, or death 57206  
certificate shall be ~~written~~ signed by the person required to sign 57207  
~~and a facsimile signature shall not be used~~ the certificate. 57208

(3) All vital records shall contain the date received for 57209  
registration. 57210

(4) Information and signatures required in certificates, 57211  
records, or reports authorized by this chapter may be filed and 57212  
registered by photographic, electronic, or other means as 57213  
prescribed by the director. 57214

Sec. 3705.231. (A) A local registrar shall issue, on receipt 57215  
of a signed application for a birth or death record and the fee 57216  
specified in division (B) of this section, a noncertified copy of 57217  
a birth or death record, and the birth or death record shall 57218  
contain at least the name, sex, date of birth or death, 57219  
registration date, and place of birth or death of the person to 57220  
whose birth or death the record attests and shall attest that the 57221  
person's birth or death has been registered. 57222

(B) A local registrar may charge a fee for providing a 57223  
noncertified copy, not to exceed twenty-five cents per page when 57224  
provided in black and white, or, if a local registrar offers to 57225  
provide a color copy, a reasonable amount not to exceed the amount 57226  
the local registrar expends in producing the color copy. 57227

Sec. 3709.03. (A) There is hereby created in each general 57228  
health district a district advisory council. A council shall 57229  
consist of the president of the board of county commissioners, the 57230  
chief executive of each municipal corporation not constituting a 57231  
city health district, and the president of the board of township 57232

trustees of each township. The board of county commissioners, the 57233  
legislative body of a municipal corporation, and the board of 57234  
township trustees of a township may select an alternate from among 57235  
themselves to serve if the president, the chief executive, or the 57236  
president of the board of township trustees is unable to attend 57237  
any meeting of the district advisory council. When attending a 57238  
meeting on behalf of a council member, the alternate may vote on 57239  
any matter on which the member is authorized to vote. 57240

The council shall organize by selecting a chair and secretary 57241  
from among its members. The council shall adopt bylaws governing 57242  
its meetings, the transaction of business, and voting procedures. 57243

The council shall meet annually in March at a place 57244  
determined by the chair and the health commissioner for the 57245  
purpose of electing the chair and the secretary, making necessary 57246  
appointments to the board of health, receiving and considering the 57247  
annual or special reports from the board of health, and making 57248  
recommendations to the board of health or to the department of 57249  
health in regard to matters for the betterment of health and 57250  
sanitation within the district or for needed legislation. The 57251  
secretary of the council shall notify the district health 57252  
commissioner and the director of health of the proceedings of such 57253  
meeting. 57254

Special meetings of the council shall be held on the order of 57255  
any of the following: 57256

(1) The director of health; 57257

(2) The board of health; 57258

(3) The lesser of five or a majority of district advisory 57259  
council members. 57260

The district health commissioner shall attend all meetings of 57261  
the council. 57262

(B) The district advisory council shall appoint ~~four~~ five 57263  
members of the board of health, ~~and the remaining member shall be~~ 57264  
~~appointed by the~~ unless the board of health has established a 57265  
health district licensing council ~~established~~ under section 57266  
3709.41 of the Revised Code, in which case, the district advisory 57267  
council shall appoint four members of the board of health, and the 57268  
health district licensing council shall appoint one member of the 57269  
board of health. At least one member of the board of health shall 57270  
be a physician. Appointments shall be made with due regard to 57271  
equal representation of all parts of the district. 57272

(C) If at an annual or special meeting at which a member of 57273  
the board of health is to be appointed fewer than a majority of 57274  
the members of the district council are present, the council, by 57275  
the majority vote of council members present, may organize an 57276  
executive committee to make the appointment. An executive 57277  
committee shall consist of five council members, including the 57278  
president of the board of county commissioners, the council chair, 57279  
the council secretary, and two additional council members selected 57280  
by majority affirmative vote of the council members present at the 57281  
meeting. The additional members selected shall include one 57282  
representative of municipal corporations in the district that are 57283  
not city health districts and one representative of townships in 57284  
the district. If an individual is eligible for more than one 57285  
position on the executive committee due to holding a particular 57286  
office, the individual shall fill one position on the committee 57287  
and the other position shall be filled by a member selected by a 57288  
majority affirmative vote of the council members present at the 57289  
meeting. A council member's alternate for annual meetings may 57290  
serve as the member's alternate at meetings of the executive 57291  
committee. 57292

Not later than thirty days after an executive committee is 57293  
organized, the committee shall meet and the council chair shall 57294

present to the committee the matter of appointing a member of the 57295  
board of health. The committee shall appoint the board member by 57296  
majority affirmative vote. In the case of a combined health 57297  
district, the executive committee shall appoint only members of 57298  
the board of health that are to be appointed by the district 57299  
advisory council, unless the contract for administration of health 57300  
affairs in the combined district provides otherwise. If a majority 57301  
affirmative vote is not reached within thirty days after the 57302  
executive committee is organized, the director of health shall 57303  
appoint the member of the board of health under the authority 57304  
conferred by section 3709.03 of the Revised Code. 57305

If the council fails to meet or appoint a member of the board 57306  
of health as required by this section or section 3709.02 of the 57307  
Revised Code, the director of health may appoint the member. 57308

Sec. 3709.05. (A) Unless an administration of public health 57309  
different from that specifically provided in this section is 57310  
established and maintained under authority of its charter, or 57311  
unless a combined city health district is formed under section 57312  
3709.051 of the Revised Code, the legislative authority of each 57313  
city constituting a city health district shall establish a board 57314  
of health. The board of health shall be composed of ~~four~~ five 57315  
members appointed by the mayor and confirmed by the legislative 57316  
authority ~~and one member appointed by the,~~ unless the board of 57317  
health has established a health district licensing council 57318  
~~established~~ under section 3709.41 of the Revised Code, in which 57319  
case, the mayor shall appoint four members of the board of health, 57320  
confirmed by the legislative authority, and the health district 57321  
licensing council shall appoint one member of the board of health. 57322

(B) Each member of the board shall be paid a sum not to 57323  
exceed eighty dollars a day for the member's attendance at each 57324  
meeting of the board. No member shall receive compensation for 57325

attendance at more than eighteen meetings in any year. 57326

(C) Each member of the board shall receive travel expenses at 57327  
rates established by the director of budget and management 57328  
pursuant to section 126.31 of the Revised Code to cover the actual 57329  
and necessary travel expenses incurred for travel to and from 57330  
meetings that take place outside the county in which the member 57331  
resides, except that any member may receive travel expenses for 57332  
registration for any conference that takes place inside the county 57333  
in which the member resides. 57334

(D) A majority of the members constitutes a quorum, and the 57335  
mayor shall be president of the board. 57336

(E) The term of office of the members shall be five years 57337  
from the date of appointment, except that of those first 57338  
appointed, one shall serve for five years, one for four years, one 57339  
for three years, one for two years, and one for one year, and 57340  
thereafter one shall be appointed each year. 57341

A vacancy in the membership of the board shall be filled in 57342  
like manner as an original appointment and shall be for the 57343  
unexpired term. 57344

Sec. 3709.07. Except as provided in section 3709.071 of the 57345  
Revised Code, when it is proposed that one or more city health 57346  
districts unite with a general health district in the formation of 57347  
a single district, the district advisory council of the general 57348  
health district shall meet and vote on the question of union. It 57349  
shall require a majority affirmative vote of the members of the 57350  
district advisory council to carry the question. The legislative 57351  
authority of each city shall likewise vote on the question. A 57352  
majority voting affirmatively shall be required for approval. When 57353  
the majority of the district advisory council and the legislative 57354  
authority have voted affirmatively, the chair of the council and 57355  
the chief executive of each city shall enter into a contract for 57356

the administration of health affairs in the combined district. 57357  
Such contract shall state the proportion of the expenses of the 57358  
board of health or health department of the combined district to 57359  
be paid by the city or cities and by the original general health 57360  
district. The contract may provide that the administration of the 57361  
combined district shall be taken over by either the board of 57362  
health or health department of one of the cities, by the board of 57363  
health of the general health district, or by a combined board of 57364  
health. Such contract shall prescribe the date on which such 57365  
change of administration shall be made. A copy of such contract 57366  
shall be filed with the director of health. 57367

The combined district shall constitute a general health 57368  
district, and the board of health or health department of the 57369  
city, the board of health of the original general health district, 57370  
or the combined board of health, as may be agreed in the contract, 57371  
shall have, within the combined district, all the powers granted 57372  
to, and perform all the duties required of, the board of health of 57373  
a general health district. 57374

The district advisory council of the combined general health 57375  
district shall consist of the members of the district advisory 57376  
council of the original general health district and the chief 57377  
executive of each city constituting a city health district, each 57378  
member having one vote. 57379

If the contract provides that the administration of the 57380  
combined district shall be taken over by a combined board of 57381  
health, rather than the board of health of the original health 57382  
district, the contract shall set forth the number of members of 57383  
such board, their terms of office, and the manner of appointment 57384  
or election of officers. One of the members of such combined board 57385  
of health shall be a physician, and one member shall be an 57386  
individual appointed by the health district licensing council, if 57387  
such council is established under section 3709.41 of the Revised 57388

Code. The contract may also provide for the representation of 57389  
areas by one or more members and shall, in such event, specify the 57390  
territory to be included in each such area. 57391

The appointment of any member of the combined board who is 57392  
designated by the provisions of the contract to represent a city 57393  
shall be made by the chief executive and approved by the 57394  
legislative authority of such city. If a member is designated by 57395  
the contract to represent more than one city, the member shall be 57396  
appointed by majority vote of the chief executives of all cities 57397  
included in any such area. Except for the member appointed by the 57398  
health district licensing council, if such council is established, 57399  
the appointment of all members of the combined board who are 57400  
designated to represent the balance of the district shall be made 57401  
by the district advisory council. 57402

The service status of any person employed by a city or 57403  
general health district shall not be affected by the creation of a 57404  
combined district. 57405

Sec. 3709.41. (A) ~~There is hereby created in~~ The board of 57406  
health of each city and ~~in~~ of each general health district may 57407  
establish a health district licensing council, to be appointed by 57408  
the entity that has responsibility for appointing the board of 57409  
health in the health district. The members of the council shall 57410  
consist of one representative of each business activity for which 57411  
the board of health operates a licensing program. To be appointed 57412  
and remain a member, an individual shall be a resident of the 57413  
health district for which the council was created. 57414

The appointing authority shall make initial appointments to 57415  
the council not later than thirty days after ~~November 21, 2001~~ the 57416  
board of health establishes the council. Of the initial 57417  
appointments to the council, one-third of the members, rounded to 57418  
the nearest whole number, shall serve for a term ending three 57419

years after ~~November 21, 2001~~ the date of appointment; one-third, 57420  
rounded to the nearest whole number, shall serve for a term ending 57421  
four years after ~~November 21, 2001~~ the date of appointment; and 57422  
the remaining members shall serve for a term ending five years 57423  
after ~~November 21, 2001~~ the date of appointment. Thereafter, terms 57424  
of office shall be five years, with each term ending on the same 57425  
day of the same month as did the term that it succeeds. 57426

Each member shall hold office from the date of the member's 57427  
appointment until the end of the term for which the member was 57428  
appointed. Members may be reappointed. 57429

Vacancies shall be filled in the manner provided for original 57430  
appointments. Any member appointed to fill a vacancy occurring 57431  
prior to the expiration of the term for which the member's 57432  
predecessor was appointed shall hold office as a member for the 57433  
remainder of that term. A member shall continue in office 57434  
subsequent to the expiration date of the member's term until the 57435  
member's successor takes office or until a period of sixty days 57436  
has elapsed, whichever occurs first. 57437

Members shall serve without compensation, except to the 57438  
extent that serving on the council is part of their regular duties 57439  
of employment. 57440

(B) Each health district licensing council shall organize by 57441  
selecting from among its members a chairperson, a secretary, and 57442  
any other officers it considers necessary. Each council shall 57443  
adopt bylaws for the regulation of its affairs and the conduct of 57444  
its business. 57445

Each council shall meet at least annually or at more frequent 57446  
intervals if specified in its bylaws. In addition to the mandatory 57447  
meetings, a council shall meet at the call of the chairperson or 57448  
the request of a majority of the council members. 57449

(C) Pursuant to sections 3709.03, 3709.05, and 3709.07 of the 57450



Revised Code, the health district licensing council, if 57451  
established by the board of health, shall appoint one ~~of its~~ 57452  
~~members to serve as a~~ member of the board of health. The council 57453  
shall appoint one of its members to serve as an alternate board of 57454  
health member if for any reason the original member is required to 57455  
abstain from voting on a particular issue being considered by the 57456  
board of health. While serving on behalf of the original member, 57457  
the alternate member has the same powers and duties as the 57458  
original member. 57459

Sec. 3714.051. (A) (1) Not later than one hundred eighty days 57460  
after ~~the effective date of this section~~ December 22, 2005, and in 57461  
accordance with rules adopted under section 3714.02 of the Revised 57462  
Code, the director of environmental protection shall establish a 57463  
program for the issuance of permits to install for new 57464  
construction and demolition debris facilities. 57465

(2) On and after ~~the effective date of this section~~ December 57466  
22, 2005, no person shall establish a new construction and 57467  
demolition debris facility without first obtaining a permit to 57468  
install issued by the board of health of the health district in 57469  
which the facility is or is to be located or from the director if 57470  
the facility is or is to be located in a health district that is 57471  
not on the approved list under section 3714.09 of the Revised Code 57472  
or if a board of health requests the director to issue the permit 57473  
to install under division (G) of this section. 57474

(B) The director, the director's authorized representative, a 57475  
board of health, or an authorized representative of the board may 57476  
assist an applicant for a permit to install during the permitting 57477  
process by providing guidance and technical assistance. 57478

(C) An applicant for a permit to install shall submit an 57479  
application to a board of health or the director, as applicable, 57480  
on a form that the director prescribes. The applicant shall 57481